
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERPI DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, 
Plaintiff, NO.02-CV-1963 (JSR) . 

v. 
I.. 

WORLDCOM. INC.. 
Defendant. 

JUDGMENT OF PERMANENT IIVJUNCTION 
DEFENDANT WORLDCOM, INC. 

A G A ~ S T  ,#; 

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission"), having filed its First 

Amended Complaint in this maner, and defendant WorldCom, Inc. ("WorldCom"), in the 

Consent and Undertaking ofWorldcorn ("Consent"), having admitted service of the Firs 
I 

Amended Complaint and given its witten consent to the filing thereof:having admined 

jurisdiction of chis Court over it and over the subject matter ofthis action; having waived the 

entry of findings of fact and conclusions of law pursuant to Rule 52 of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure, and, without admitting or denying the allegations of rhe First mended Complaint, 

except as to jurisdiction,which it admits,having consented to entry of this Judgment of 

Permanent Lojunction, and ir appearing that this Court hasjurisdiction over WorldCom and the 

subject rnaner hereot and this Court bAng fully advised in rhe premises: 

1. 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that WorldCom, its 

agents, accountants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation with 



them who receive acrual notice of this Judgment by personal service or othmise. and each of 

rhern. be and are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined fiom violating Section 10(b) of the 

Securities Exchange.Act of 1934 [15 U.S.C. 8 78j(b)] and Rule 1Ob-5 promulgated thereunder 

(17 C.F.R.5 240. I Ob-51,directly or indirectly, by the use of any means or instrurnencality of 

interstate commerce,or of the mails,or of any facility of any national securities exchange, by: 

(a) employing any device, scheme or artifice to defraud. 

(b) making any untae statement of a material fact or omirting to state a material fact 

necessary in order to make the statemem made, in the light ofthe circumstancesunder which 

they were made, not misleading, or 

(c) engaging in any acf practice or course of business which operates or would operate 

as a 6aud or deceit upon any person. 

in connection with the purchase or sale of any securhy. 

11. 

IT ISFURTHER ORDEFtED, ADJUDGED, ANXI DECREED that WorldCorn, its 

agents, accountants, employes, accorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation with 

them who receive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service or otherwise, and each of 

them, be and are hereby permanently resuained and enjointxi, in the offer or sale of securities, 

fiom violating Section 17(a) ofthe Securit~tsAct of 1933 (15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)], by making use 

of any meam or insmcnts oftransportation or communicarionin intersrace commerce. or of 

the mails, directly or indirectly 

(a )  to employ any device, scheme or artifice to dehud; 

(b) to engage in any transactions, practices or courses of business which operate or 

would operate as a fraud or deceit; or 



I . . ..- - .  . . - . .- .- ... . . - .. _ .,.* . . . . . ..- .. .. 

(c) to obtain money or property by means ofany unkue statement of material facr or any 

omission to stare a matelrial fact necessary in order to make the statements made. in light of the 

circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

111. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that WorldCom. its 

agents, accountants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation with 

them who receive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service or orhenvise, and each of 

them. be and are hereby permanent1y restrained and enjoined firom violaring Secdon 1 3 (a) of the 

Securities Exchange Act of 2934 [lS U.S.C. $ 78m(a)] and Rules 138-1, 13a-13 and I2b-20 

thereunder [ I  7 C.F.R.$ 5  240.13a-1, 240.13a-13, 240.12b-201,by: 

(a) failing to file with the Commission factually accunte and complete annual and 

quarterly reports as required pursuant to Section 13(a) af the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

and Rules 1 3a- I and 1 311-13 promulgated thereunder, or by 

(b) omitting to !Rate, or causing another person to omit to state. in addition to the 

information expressly rcquired to be included in such annual and quarterly reports,'anysuch 

fUrther material information as may be necessary to make the required statements, in light ofthe 

circumstances under which such statementsare made, not misleading. 

lv.  

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that WorldCom, its 

agenrs, accouutants, employees, arcomeys, and all persons in active concert or participation with 

them who receive actual notice ofthis Judgnent by personal s h c e  or orherwise, and each of  

them. be and are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 13&)(2)(A) 

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 [15 U.S.C. 78m(b)(2j(A)] by failing to make or keep 
. . 

.- 3 



- - .  - - _,.,__ .._--- . . .- - .-....-. - ---. . - .- .. . .- .. ------ - .. ---- - .. . .-... , 

books, records, and accounts, which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect [he 

transactions and dispositions of the assets o f  WorldCom. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED. ADJUDGED, AND DECREED thar WorldCom, its 

agents, accountants, employees, attorneys,and all persons in active concert or pa~icipationwith 

them who receive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service or otherwise. and each of 

them, be and are hereby permanently restrained and enjoined from violaring Section. 13(b)(2)(B 1 
. . -

of the Securiries Exchange Act of 1934 [I5 U.S.C.$ 78m(bXZ)(B)Jby failing to devise and 

maintain a system of internal accounting controls sufficientto provide reasonable assurances 

that; 

(a) transactions are executed in accordance with management'sgeneral or specific 
\ 

authorization; 

(b) nansactionc are recorded as necessary (1) to pennit preparation of financial 

statements in conformity with g e n d l y  accepred acfounting principles or any orher criteria 

applicable to such stawmencs,and (2) to main& accountability for assets; 

(c) access to iv;sets is permitted only in accordance with management's general or 

specific authorization; and 

(d) the terordd accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at 

reasonable intwals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. 

VI. 

IT IS FURTFER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED thar upon motion of 

the Commission or ar the instance of rhe Cow, the amount of civil penalty, if any, to be paid 

by defmdmt WorldCom pursuanr to the provisiow offextion tO(d) of the Securities Act of 
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1933 (15 U.S.C. 9 77t(d)] and Section Zl(d) of the Exchange Act [IS U.S.C. 4 7Uu(d)]. shall bc 

determined by the Court in light of all the relevant facts and circumstances. following a hearing. 

At that hearing, the issue:; will be limited to determining the appropriateness and amounc of any 

such civil penalty. At that hearing, WorldCom will be precluded From arguing that it did not 

violate the federal securities laws in the manner described in the First Amended Complainr 

herein and, solely for the purposes o f  such hearing, the allegations of the First Anended 

Complaint shall be accepted as and deemed true by the Court. The Court may determine 

whether to impose a penalty, and the amount of  any such penalty, on the basis of affidavits, 

declarations, depositionexcerpts and exhibits, or any other information deemed appropriate by 

the Court. Defendant WorldCom may not. at the hearing. challenge the validity of its Consent or 

this Judgment. ' 

VII. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED,AND DECREED that the report 

currently being prepared by the Special Investigative Commircee of the Board of Directors of 

Worldcorn will be transmitted to the ~ o r ~ o r a t e ' ~ o n i t o rupon its completion. Taking note of  the 

report of the Special Invwtigative Committee and such o k  input as the Corporate Momtor 

shall deem appropriate, the Corporate Monitor shall perform a review of the adequacy and 

effectiveness of WorldCom's corporate governance systems, policies, plans, and practices. This 

review will includebut is not limited to inquiries into (1) whether worldcorn is complying with 

recognized standards of "best practices" with respect to corporate governance; (2) whether 

WorldCom has sufficient policia and safeguards in place (a) to ensure that WorldCom's Board 

of Dir-tors and all committees of WorldCom's Board of Directors (including without limitation 

the audit committee and the compensation committee) have appropriate powers. strucwe, 



composirion, and resources and (b)10 prevent self-dealing by managemenr; 

(3) whether WorldCom has an adequate a ~ dappropriate code of ethics and business conduct, and 

related compliance mechanisms; and (4) whether WorldCom has appropriate safepards in place 

to prevent further violations of the  federal securities laws. WorldCorn shall provide to the 

Corporate Monitor all documents and information within its custody or control requested by rhe-

Corporate Monitor in comecrion with his rwiew. The Corporate Monitor shall.ust his best 

efforts to submit to WorldCom1sBoard of Directors, the C o w  and the Commission a report 

setting forth his recomrnendar;ions with respect to the corporate governance issues he has 

reviewed within 60days of his receipt of the report of the Special Investigative Cornminee. and 

in any event he shall submit his report to WorldCom's Board of Directors,the Court and the 

Commission within 120 days of his receipt of the report of the Special Investigative Committee. 

Within 60days of the receipt of the repon of rhe Corporate Monitor with respect to corporate 

,- governance, WorldCom's Board of Directors shall report to the Court and the Commission with .. . 

respect to the decisions and actions taken as a result of each of the recommendations made by rhe 

Corporate Monitor. 

[T IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED,AND DECREED that WoridCom shall 

retain, within 30 days after the enw of the Judgment of Permanent Injunction, a qualified 

consultant acceptable to the Commission, to perform a review of the effectiveness of 

WorldCom's material i n t d  accounring control structure and policies, including those related 

to line costs, reserves, and capital enpendirures,as well as rhe effectiveness and ptopriety of 

WorldCorn's processes, practices and policies for ensuring rhe Company's financial data is 

accurateIy reported in its public financial statemenu. Within 30 days after the retention of a 



- cons<ltant acceptable to the Commission,the consultant shall submit to the Commission a 

proposal that is acceptable 10rhe Commission which describes the scope of [he work to be 

performed by the consultant, and includes a detailed description of the various tasks to be 

undertaken in the course of the consultant's revicw. sets forth the identities and credentials of the 

individuals who wilt perform those tasks, and provides an estimate ofrhe number o f  hours 

expected to be devoted to the various tasks involved in the consultant's review- Any 

disagreement bebveen WorldCom and the Commission concerning the proposal shall be 

submitted to and rnolved by the Corporate Monitor. W i t h  120 days after approval of the 

proposal, the consultant shall complete its review and submit to WorldCom's Board af Directors. 

the Court and the Commission, a repon fully documenting the findingof its review and making 

specific recommendations. Within 60days of the submission of the report, Worldcorn's Board 

of Directors shall report to the Court and Commissionwith rspect to the decisions and actions 

taken as a rcsult of each o f  the recommendations made by the consultant. 

xx. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Worldcorn shall 

provide reasonable training and eduation co certain of its officers and employees to minimize 

the possibility of future violations of the federal securities laws. Completion of such training 

shall be mandatory for WorldCom officm and employees involved in its corporate level 

accounting and financial reporting functions; for those officers and employees involved in 

financial reporting at WorldComls major divisions and subsidiaries (including, specifically. 

those officers and employees responsible for closing the books in their area of responsibdit~ a1 

the end of a quarterly or annual reporting period); and for senior operational officers at 

WorldComls corporate, divisional and subsidiary levels. Such training and education shall 
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include.at a'minirnurn, components covering the following'subjects: the obligations imposed by 

the federal securities laws; proper internal accounting controls and procedures; recognizing 

indications of non-GAAP accounting practices or Fraud most relevant to WorldCom's business 

endeavors; and the oblig~tions. . incumbent upon, and the responses expected of, Worldtom 

officers and employees upon teaming of illegaI or potentially illegal acts concerning the 

company's accounting and financial reporting. Worldcorn shall consult with the Commission in-

designing its training and education pmgrarh, and shell submit to the Commission a detailed 

proposal within 60 days after entry of this Judgment which describes the content and 

implementation of the training and education program, in a form that is acceptable.tothe 

Commission. WorIdCom shall commence providing initial training and education sessions . 

wathin60 days thereafter, and shall continue to ptovide such training and education on an annual 

basis, for a mi&um period ofthree years after entry of this Judgment 

X. 

fTIS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJXJDGED, AND DECREED that the Commission is 

expressly authorized to engage in conrinued discovery regarding any unresolved issue in the case 
- -. 

with respect to WorldCom, which shall include, but is not limited to, discovery for the purposes 

of determining the appropriate civil penalty that should be imposed against defendant 

WorIdCom. 

XI.  

ITIS FUXI'HER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent of 

WoridCorn filedherein be, and the same hereby is, incorporated in this Judgment by reference 

wich the same force and effect as'if fully set fonh herein and that WorldCom. its agents, 

accountants, employe^, attorneys,and all persons in active concert or participation with them 
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- who receive acrual notice of this Judgment by personal semice or othewise, and each of them, 

shall comply in all respects with the terms of the Consent. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Coun's 

previous Orders in this case concerning the appointment of  the Corporate monitor, his 

1 ' responsibilities, his dutics, and all matters ~eiatedthereto are hereby reaffirmed and remain in 
s

force and are not affected, abrogated, or wper~ededin any way by this Judgment ofPermanent 

Injunction, except as provided herein. 

XIII. 

ITIS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED rhar this C o w  shall 

retainjurisdiction of this action for all purposes, iacluding, without limitation, the 

implementation and enforcement of the terms of this Judgment &d all other W r s  and Decrees 

. .'...- .  .. .... '..: C .
..:,... ..-;'.5 ., 
. ... ,... . 

rhat have been or may be knterod herein, and the implementationof additional quitable 

remedies or sanctions. if any, as determined following ahearing. 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that there being no just 

reason for delay, the Clerk ofthe Court is o r d d  to enter this Judgment ofPermanent 

Injunction. 

U.S.D.J. 

DATED: New York, New York 
November 3& ,2002 



Copies 'to: 

Peter H. Bresnan, Esq. 
Deputy Chief Litigation Counsel 
Securities and Exchange Commission 
450 Fifth Street, N W  
Washington. D.C. 20549 . 

202/942-4788 (phone) 
202f942-958 1 (fax) . 

Paul C. Curnin, Esq. 
Simpson Thacher & Bartlett 
425 Lexington Avenue 
New York, New York 1001 7-3954 
2 12/455-25 19 (phone) 
2 121455-2502 (fax) 


